HARVIE (Harvey), JOHN,

railway conductor and manager, businessman, and politician; b. 12 April 1833 in Campbeltown, Scotland, son of John Harvey, a maltster, and Jean Ferguson; m. 1 May 1861 Eliza Jane Creighton* in Aurora, Upper Canada, and they had a son and three daughters; d. 5 Sept. 1917 in Guelph, Ont.

John Harvey had a grammar school education, and at 13 he went to work, probably in a distillery. He next worked for a steamship line and a gas company, but the youth soon had enough of Campbeltown; family tradition holds that he was sickened by the drunkenness there. In 1851 he emigrated to Toledo, Ohio, where his mother's family had connections. He joined the traffic department of the Michigan Southern Railroad, but after a year became ill. During a recuperative trip in 1852 he visited Toronto and a Campbeltown friend persuaded him to stay. By this time he had changed the spelling of his surname.

Early in 1853 Harvie joined the Ontario, Simcoe and Huron Union Rail-road (later the Northern) as a freight conductor. When, on 16 May 1853, the American conductor engaged to take the railway's first passenger train from Toronto to Machell's Corners (Aurora) failed to appear, superintendent Alfred Brunel* put Harvie in charge. (This steam train was also the first to operate in Upper Canada.) Harvie continued as a conductor. The high point of his conducting career undoubtedly came on 11 Sept. 1860, when he ran the Prince of Wales's special train on an outing to Georgian Bay. In return he received an inscribed silver basket, which remains in family hands.

Tall, with a big nose, high-cheek bones, and a beard, Harvie lived a Spartan life, constantly on the move. For all his observance of Sunday, teetotalism, and earnest involvement in the Presbyterian Church, he liked parties and dancing. He met his future wife, the daughter of the Methodist minister in the Newmarket-Aurora area, that way; following their marriage they settled in Toronto.

In 1867 Harvie became train and traffic manager for the Northern. During the 1870s, a period of economic hardship in Canada, he was presumably under pressure to contain costs. He was not successful enough: in 1878 the Northern appointed a new operating head and made Harvie its stationmaster at Toronto's new Union

Station. The demands of this position were apparently so great that by the end of the decade he was quite ill. In 1881 he retired.

With the recovery of the 1880s, Harvie turned to real estate development and politics. His major investments were in the Ontario Industrial Loan and Investment Company Limited, of which he was a director from 1882. Its assets included rental properties, land, mortgages, and the well-known Toronto Arcade building, erected in 1883. In 1884 Harvie served as an alderman for St Patrick's Ward. The following year he became a trustee of the Toronto General Burial Ground Trust. By 1886 Harvie, a prominent member of Knox's Church and since 1878 a lay director of the Upper Canada Bible Society, had also become the trust's permanent secretary. He returned to civic life in 1887, when he topped the polls in St Patrick's and ran unsuccessfully as a Reformer in the dominion election in Toronto Centre. Re-elected alderman in 1888, he did not serve his full term.

In the 1890s Harvie's financial ventures soured. The Building and Loan Association, in which he held shares, cut its dividends as a result of the Winnipeg real estate collapse and in 1895 Ontario Industrial stopped paying dividends. His domestic life also changed. His remaining children left home (a daughter had died in 1874), and after many years of prominence in various charities, Eliza took a paid position in 1896, as the first visitor working out of the office of John Joseph Kelso*, provincial superintendent of neglected and dependent children. The Harvies subsequently left their house on Bedford Road and lived in a series of boardinghouses, because Eliza was travelling much of the time and John had no taste for housekeeping.

Harvie retired from the Bible Society in 1907, about the same time that Eliza stopped working for Kelso, and they moved again, into an apartment in the house of their daughter Jean Ferguson and her husband, Richard A. Donald, on fashionable Balmoral Avenue. Harvie held his cemetery trusteeship until mid 1915, but sometime after September 1916 he went into the Homewood Sanitarium for the insane in Guelph, where he died in 1917.

PHILIP CREIGHTON

This biography is adapted from the author's article on John Harvie in the *York Pioneer* (Toronto), 81 (1986): 1–15, for which he used Harvie papers in his own collection, as well as

at MTRL, SC, and in the City of Toronto Arch., SC 347. Additional information is supplied in Harvie's baptismal record in the General Register Office for Scotland, Edinburgh (Campbeltown, reg. of births and baptisms, 15 April 1833), his marriage and death registrations (AO, RG 80-27-2, 84: 365 and RG 80-8-0-645, no.33714), his estate file (AO, RG 22-305, no.34286), and F. N. Walker, *Four whistles to wood-up: stories of the Northern Railway of Canada* ([Toronto], 1953).

http://www.biographi.ca/en/bio/harvie john 14E.html

CREIGHTON, ELIZA JANE (Harvie), homemaker and social reformer; b. 11 March 1840 near Peterborough, Upper Canada, daughter of Kennedy Creighton and Laura Hart; m. 1 May 1861 John Harvie* in Aurora, Upper Canada, and they had a son and three daughters; d. 22 June 1929 in Toronto.

Lizzie J. Creighton, as she was known publicly and to her family, was the second of the five surviving children of an Irish-born Methodist minister and his wife, a native of Pennsylvania. She had a childhood of change: by the time she was ready for formal schooling, in Bytown (Ottawa), she had been in ten parsonages. She finished her education at the Wesleyan Ladies' College in Dundas. When she was at home, she and her brother John R. ran their father's Sunday school, a vocation she would follow throughout her life. A slight woman, perhaps five and a half feet in height, she had a strong face (to judge from her pictures) and was precise in her habits.

In 1860, when her father was chair of the church's Barrie district, she attracted the attention of John Harvie, the senior conductor on the Northern Railway. Family tradition says she picked him out as he was dancing in a hotel in Aurora. Following their marriage by her father, they settled in Toronto, near the Northern's yards. John was a staunch Presbyterian, and Lizzie converted. In 1865 they were living in Collingwood, where John was the station agent, but the next year they were back in Toronto. On John's appointment as train and traffic manager of the Northern, the family moved into a house supplied by the railway. Lizzie must have been busy. By the time she was 29, she had four children, a large house, and her work in West Presbyterian Church. In July 1874 tragedy struck when her daughter Mary died. Her reaction was a wonderful example of her approach to life: health care for children must be improved. That winter she participated in meetings with Elizabeth Jennet

McMaster [Wyllie*], Lady Macdonald [Bernard*], and others which led to the opening of the Hospital for Sick Children in March 1875.

Other philanthropic work soon followed. In 1876 a group of laywomen formed the Woman's Foreign Missionary Society of the Presbyterian Church in Canada (Western Division). Harvie became its foreign secretary, a post she would hold until 1896, with one interruption due to ill health in 1888–90. The society focused on missions abroad [see Agnes Maria Turnbull*] and native schools and missions in the Canadian west. Not only did it raise money for these operations, in the case of the western missions it helped collect clothing and blankets. In addition to handling correspondence, Harvie toured Ontario, setting up auxiliaries and mission bands, visiting branches, and making speeches. The society's Monthly Letter Leaflet gives many glimpses of her activities. By 1876 she had also joined the board of the Women's Christian Association, which ran a boarding house for single, young working women, principally from outside Toronto. Volunteer members also visited females in the city jail. Harvie sat on the jail committee (and on the hospital and house of industry committees) and she soon realized that a discharged inmate had no support if she wanted to change upon re-entering society. In early 1878 she persuaded the WCA to open the Haven, a lodging house for former prisoners. To fund this operation (named the Toronto Prison Gate Mission), she employed the technique that had worked for the children's hospital: start the project and have the city's philanthropically inclined provide the necessary resources. By 1878 she had become, as well, corresponding secretary of the Toronto branch of the Woman's Christian Temperance Union, which had been brought to Ontario by Letitia Youmans [Creighton*], possibly a distant cousin. Harvie assisted in the formation of the provincial WCTU. She must have found it easy to join the temperance movement: her father and husband had both lived in communities degraded by alcohol and were proponents of prohibition.

Harvie's volunteer work was interspersed with domestic crises. In 1878 the Northern made her husband stationmaster of Toronto's new Union Station, a move he resented. It meant the loss of the company residence, but through his dabbling in real estate another house was found. His poor health forced a long leave of absence and a recuperative trip to Scotland – Harvie remained in Toronto, anxious about the future – and he finally retired from the Northern in 1881. Her other concern was their rebellious elder daughter, Jean Ferguson. Harvie managed to find occupation

for her on the WCA's board and the ladies' committee of the Hospital for Sick Children, of which Harvie was a president. Jean married in 1885. The same year John became permanent secretary of the Upper Canada Bible Society and Lizzie's father had a violent stroke. (The Creightons subsequently moved in with the Harvies.)

From her work for the hospital, Harvie knew Emily Howard Stowe [Jennings*] and Jenny Kidd Trout [GOWANLOCK], two doctors who also sat on the WCA's board. Originally forced to go to the United States for training, they were determined to provide medical education for women in Toronto. In 1886, with Harvie as treasurer, they opened Woman's Medical College. It was likely through Harvie that Stowe's daughter, Ann Augusta*, became acting physician to the Prison Gate Mission. The Haven created some tension within the WCA. Most of its directors preferred the more genteel parts of the operation, such as Christian instruction, but as its corresponding secretary and its president from 1887, Harvie was devoted to its practical success. Under her direction the Haven was opened to "every lost woman" (not just former inmates), the city was divided into districts for systematic fundraising, and a new building was erected. Her continuing commitment to working women was illustrated in May 1887 when she became the founding president of the Toronto Young Women's Christian Guild (the highly successful predecessor to the city's Young Women's Christian Association). Its relations with the WCA were soured at one point by a legacy from William Gooderham*, which was directed to an organization that could have been either the guild or the association. The case went to court, but a settlement was arranged before judgement.

In 1894, a year after Harvie had attended the Woman's Congress staged in Chicago by the National American Woman Suffrage Association, the WFMS decided to send two executive members to the west to get information regarding its work there, especially to see if its collection of clothing and blankets was justified. On 1 Aug. 1894 Harvie, secretary of supplies Cecilia Mary Jeffrey, and their husbands set out, following an itinerary prepared by the Reverend Andrew Browning Baird of Manitoba College. Harvie was back on 18 September, having covered some 4,300 miles by rail and steamboat and over 600 miles of trails. The ladies had visited every Presbyterian mission and reserve school, as well as all of the society's auxiliaries in Manitoba and the northwest. Their report reflects contemporary views of aid and assimilation. The schools were well run, the mission personnel and teachers were

dedicated, and the natives who had converted and lived nearby were better off than the non-Christians. Harvie and Jeffrey found that more money was needed and that clothing and blankets were vitally important.

Major changes occurred in Harvie's life in the 1890s. After a protracted battle, the all-male trustees of the Hospital for Sick Children, led by John Ross Robertson*, wrested total financial control from the ladies' committee in 1891. The real estate investments of her husband were hit by recession, her daughter Laura left home on her marriage to her cousin the Reverend William Black Creighton (for whom Harvie would find a job at the Christian Guardian), her unambitious son finally married, and her father died in February 1892 and her mother in December 1895. The Harvies then moved to a boarding house. Lizzie's new-found liberty, including her resignation from her positions in the WFMS and the Prison Gate Mission, allowed her in April 1896 to accept a paying job in social work, as the first assistant of John Joseph Kelso*, Ontario's newly appointed superintendent of neglected and dependent children. Hired to visit and report on foster children across the province, she was well suited for this daunting task, which she entered upon with all the enthusiasm she had displayed at the WFMS and the WCA. In 1905 alone she made 830 visits. She would retire only in 1911 at the age of 71, two years after John's retirement from the Bible society.

After living in a series of boarding houses, the Harvies ended their rootless existence by moving into a flat in the residence of their daughter Jean. Following John's demise in a sanitarium in 1917, Harvie stayed with Jean until the latter's death in 1923. She spent her last years in Laura's home. To the end she remained willing to correct and improve family and visitors.

PHILIP CREIGHTON

Lizzie J. Harvie's contributions to the Women's Christian Assoc., the Prison Gate Mission and Haven, the Toronto Young Women's Christian Guild, and the Hospital for Sick Children are noted in the annual reports for these organizations reproduced on microfiche in CIHM. Her reports as a visitor in the neglected children's branch of the Department of the Provincial Secretary are found in Ont., Legislature, Sessional papers.

AO, RG 80-8-0-1119, no.5256. Globe, 24 June 1929. Canadian men and women of the time (Morgan; 1912). Philip Creighton, "John Harvie," York Pioneer (Toronto), 81 (1986):

1–15. Directory, Toronto, 1880–85. Presbyterian Church in Canada, Woman's Foreign Missionary Soc. (Western Div.), Monthly Letter Leaflet (Toronto), 1884–96; available on microfiche in CIHM

http://www.biographi.ca/en/bio/creighton_eliza_jane_15E.html